STATEMENT OF THE IDENTITY OF PETITIONER  
 
 

Abstract, contextually 
 
 This case began in South Carolina as the Appellant departed the active duty of the U.S. 

Air Force.   The Husband of 17 years and father of 4 was the primary source of financial 

provision willed to establish a platform for volunteer networking; however, the wife and primary 

care taker of the children was triggered with anxiety by the risk of uncommon pursuits.   Though 

the couple had agreed to this course of action prior to the transition, the wife became severely 

symptomatic of fear and became excessively controlling to see him follow conventional 

employment.   The Husbands efforts to reason, or to mitigate costs such as relocation and 

suspending private school of the children were subverted.  The wife rapidly established a 

demonized narrative leveraging stereotypes to undo the confidence of the husband’s dreams of 

purpose filled work.   She attacked his faith and he defended it.  When he did not capitulate to 

her homewrecking and resisted she “ fled for her life “ taking the children to construct 

implications for cause and force hardship.  Conceptually she took on that hateful spirit as seen in 

a recent viral video of 2020 of the woman in New York Central Park who called the police to 

report that a black man was threatening her life, because as a bird watcher, he insisted that she 

collar her dog.   It is well understood the false accusations are now permissible as an angry party 

entitlement despite the gravity of their consequence, it is overlooked though it is the very 

substance of a hate crime.  The husband continues to pursue his sense of calling despite the 

efforts of the Court to coerce him to pay $1,600 monthly alimony.  The basis for the alimony on 

a foundation of fault for faith.   The Alimony was awarded in a no-fault divorce ruling, but 

treated the same as fault as the Court found the Husband’s use of his faith to protect himself from 

hate was cause for the wife to flee the marriage.   It was necessary for the Court to fabricate 
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some faith hate reasons since the psychological evaluations heavily favored the husband.   

Because no evidence supported the wife’s entitlement to children or money.  This is the fruit of a 

Feminist hate combined with a Judge originating from Berkley California operating in South 

Carolina and trying to please her peers.  The matter is on Appeal in South Carolina.   The 

Husband has been sentenced to prison 3 times for contempt of Court as he has seemingly been 

uncooperative to the manipulations of a Court demonstrating contempt for the way of life 

provisioned by the constitution.( U.S. Const. amend I)  He has continued to fight for his 4 

children to have access to their father and to have a rearing role for their development, and for 

matters of contempt of court he has appealed all false or hateful rulings since the time of the final 

divorce trial. 

I am the Petitioner and Husband of this case.   I was Born in Bellingham Washington, 

raised in Maui Hawaii where I attended Catholic School.  I Attended University in Fort Collins 

Colorado at Colorado State University and degreed in Mechanical Engineering.   I married 

Christy, the Respondent, in 2000.  In 2001 I was Presidentially Commissioned as a 2nd 

Lieutenant to the U.S. Air Force.   I was active duty for 13 years and we moved every few years, 

we had 4 children together.   I regularly volunteered in ministry type activates and when I left the 

Air Force I wanted to start a non-profit type outreach system.   But when I departed the Air Force 

my wife of 15 years decided that putting her anxieties and validating fear was my husbandly 

mandate and sought to coerce and control stating that my confidence to do otherwise was 

unloving as a byproduct of my religion.   So we failed to navigate the career transition, but such 

a simple failure would seem to shallow since she also seeks to associate with Christianity.  So, 

she leveraged faith hate to facilitate an external condemning narrative to justify her urges to 

indulge a basic lack of personal character, fortitude, and resilience to circumstantial changes.  
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COURT OF APPEALS’ DECISIONS 
 I request full review, or DE NOVO, of the Court of Appeal’s decision that affirmed Court 

finding in Christy Crabtree v. Donald Crabtree Case No. 80165-1-I, filed 20 April 2020.  The 

primary fault of the Appellate Court is to ignore the prevailing law of the land embodied in the 

1st Amendment of the United States Constitution (U.S. Const. amend I).  The South Carolina 

Divorce Order, for which my failure to abide clearly condemns my exercise of faith as a basis for 

financial burden.   Citing the Husband’s use of faith as cause for the failure of the marriage, and 

also as the basis for imputation of alimony equating it to that of a fault-based determination for 

presence of faith.    

 The Court of Appeals decision here would suggest that the Courts are bound to 

enforcement of unconstitutionality, putting the traditions of the Court above the law.  Whereas a 

Court may recognize proceedings of jurisdiction, the Court has no entitlement to ignore an 

unconstitutional basis.   It implies a war of ego superiority between the judicial and legislative 

branch.   A rebellion and contempt for the people.    

 Additionally, The Court of Appeals excuse for failing to reverse the lower Court’s 

decision are a sad defense.  The ruling pivoted on the idea that there was substantial evidence to 

support the imputation of income.   Yet, due to the out of state transfer of the Order being 

enforced, there is no accompanying evidence included in the case record.   Leaving the Appellate 

Court looking incompetent or evil for saying their decision was supported by evidence.  Which 

embodies the foolishness of the Courts these days to pick a trajectory and then make excuses to 

justify it, which then show them to be either unable to reason, or unwilling.   Add to this the fact 

that the order displays contempt for the 1st Amendment of the United States Constitution, 

demonstrates how substantially compromised the order is.   This demonstrates that the lower 

court’s commissioner is also compromised by her recognition of the Order’s narrative and it’s 
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embedded anti-ideology used to trigger and signal hate for masculinity.   This is not a matter of 

competency of the court but rather ulterior motive.   It is a hater’s dream, just like that woman in 

New York of the recent viral video.  Whereby she failed to collar her dog and when corrected by 

a black man she witfully put her trust in the ease of accusation to leverage his gender and his 

ethnicity.   How did she know this would be such an easy pathway to vindicating herself, if the 

Courts didn’t have a reputation for gleeful endorsement of false allegations.   

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 
 I request that the Washington State Supreme Court review the full original briefs by 

which the Appellate Court issued its ruling, which are attached.   Some itemized issues are: 

1) Commissioner Pamela Englett failed to read declared documents 

2) Commissioner Pamela Englett failed to be judicial 

3) Commissioner Pamela Englett failed to listen  

4) Commissioner Pamela Englett interrupted and spoke over the Defendant 

5) Commissioner Pamela Englett refused to allow exculpatory tax evidence 

6) Commissioner Pamela Englett refused relocation as a change of circumstance 

7) Commissioner Pamela Englett hates PRO SE people and feeds her young 

8) Commissioner Pamela Englett perpetuated injustice. 

9) Commissioner Pamela Englett exacerbated injustice. 

10) The basis of the S.C. order is in direct violation of the U.S. Constitution. 

STATEMENT OF THE CASE  

The case begins as an emergency Complaint filed by the Respondent on November 10, 

2015 (hereinafter “Wife”) against the Appellant (hereinafter “Husband” or I in the first person).  

The Husband was served the following day and resourced an attorney that same day for a hearing 

to occur two (2) days later on Friday the 13th of November, upon which the Husband provided 
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his Answer and Counterclaim and digital evidence.  Both parties filed motions for temporary 

relief.   At the time of the hearing no testimony was taken due to Judge McFaddin’s case load.  

Upon those affidavits, a Temporary Ruling was issued (12) days later on November 25, 2015, 

finding the Plaintiff to be credible and evicting the Husband, giving him restricted supervised 

visitation with his children, ordering support of imputed income by his active duty military pay 

of the career he had departed 10 months earlier, payment of the mortgage, private school tuition, 

amounting to approximately $5,000 per month.1  The Temporary Order was filed on 30 

December (IBID) and the Husband filed a lengthy Motion to Reconsider on 19 January 2016 

itemizing and transcribing dialogue from digital evidence in marital a recording and family 

videos that had been included in his Answer at the Temporary Hearing.(IBID)   

The Court did not respond for 42 days to the Husbands Motion to Reconsider until March 

2, 2016, during which time, the Husband had not maintained the Court Ordered support amounts 

and for which a Rule to Show Cause had been issued on January 28, 2016 and for which Hearing 

date was set for March 2, 2016. The Court denied the Husband’s Motion for Reconsideration on 

the date of the Hearing to Show Cause, and the Hearing to Show Cause proceeded that day.2  The 

Hearing resulted in the Husband being found in contempt and sentenced to 180 days with 

immediate incarceration and was handcuffed at that time.(IBID)  

Judge George McFaddin after stating the Plaintiff showed her case prima facie the following: 

“I’m going to get his attention, now.  Making him concentrating on going to 
work, I hope.  Because as of now he will be in the custody of the Sheriff’s 
Department and he shall serve no less than 180 days in jail, until he purges 
himself – “ (IBID) 
 

                                                        
1 CP Sub Document 14 page 4 
2 CP Sub Document 14 page 5 
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This Ruling was contested by the Husband’s attorney, was given less than 24 hours to purge 

himself for which payment would be allowed by check from the Defendant’s attorney’s office, 

which was accomplished the following day. (IBID) 

The Husband Petitioned for Supersedeas on 23 March 2015 to stay similar events on 

account of the support demands imposed with respect to the facts of the case. (IBID)  By the time 

of Appellate review the Husband had found work.  In the Wife’s response to Supersedeas she 

argued that change in circumstance as the Husband had gained employment (IBID), for which the 

Appellate Court remanded the income matter and held other matters in abeyance until final 

hearing. (IBID)  A month later the Psychological Evaluations that had been mandated by the 

Temporary Order were conducted on the Husband and Wife on September 13th and 14th 

respectively3; and upon those reports, the Husband made motion for reversal of child custody. 

(IBID)  The Child Custody Hearing took place on 17 January, 2017 where the Mother objected to 

the Psychological Reports that were taken as evidence, agreed at that time to removing 

supervised visitation constraints but the Court choose to hold the remanded financial income 

matter in further abeyance. (IBID) 

From that same Custody hearing on 17 January, 2017 the Defendant only achieved the 

removal of “supervision” requirement. (IBID)  At this time, the Defendant relieved his counsel of 

record and proceeded pro se by order dated 10 March, 2017.  In response to the limited custody 

adjustment the Defendant made Motion for Reconsideration including a Drafted Order, financial 

arguments, and a timeline to show causality in the acrimony.  In his Motion, the Husband 

corrected a statement of the order saying the wife was seeking divorce, for which at time she was 

not.  The Husband clarified that the complaint of the Plaintiff was yet to be seeking divorce and 

                                                        
3 CP Sub Document 14 page 6 
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made implications as to why.  In his attached drafted order, the husband offered a drafted ruling 

he felt reflected the evidence. (IBID) 

The Husband’s consultant work ended when the government contract expired in 

November of 2016, and the Husband began to fail to pay the mortgage beginning in January on 

the marital home.  The Wife made Motion for Rule to Show Cause due to this on 10 March, 

2015 for which a hearing was scheduled for 22 May, 2018.  Prior to the Hearing on 22 May, 

2018 the Wife filed Amended Complaint requesting divorce on grounds of 1 year continuous 

separation and also asking again to impose supervised visitation4.  On this same day a Hearing 

for Rule to Show Cause resulted in the Defendant being found in contempt and allowed to access 

marital assets to fulfill reimburse for those missed mortgage payments.   Attorney fees of the 

Plaintiff and retroactive support adjustments requested by the Defendant were both held in 

abeyance until final trial. (IBID) 

The Defendant received the Amended Complaint of the Wife shortly after the Hearing to 

Show Cause.  In response, the Husband provided a very long answer outlining the culpability of 

the wife, and attacking the Court’s obtuse ability to be influenced by evidence exercised by 

Judge McFaddin in the situation at hand.  On 23 June, 2017 the Wife filed a Motion to Strike all 

of the Defendant’s response except for the first portion for which the Husband consented to the 

Wife’s request for Divorce. (IBID)  On 24 July, 2017 at the Hearing the Husband agreed to the 

Motion to Strike and requested that he might resubmit.     

At Final trial on Oct 2, the 2017 the Husband provided a pre-trial memorandum making 

his requests known for primary placement and equal time parenting and recommending changes 

to visitation schedules for families with many children. (IBID)  He also resubmitted his answer to 

                                                        
4 CP Sub Document 14 page 7 
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the Amended Complaint which was objected and sustained for lack of an approved Motion to be 

permitted to do so.   The Final Trial ran three days in duration.  The ruling was given 8 

November, 2018.  Judge Pincus, the Trial Judge, found the Plaintiff to be credible and finding 

grounds to state the Plaintiff suffered 15 years of Faith Based Abuse on account of Judge Pincus 

feeling troubled by faith related content.5  The Defendant received the Final Order on Dec 14 

further outlining the Defendant’s use of his Christian faith toward Mother as main cause of the 

demise of the marriage (IBID) and also finding no statutory grounds for fault ground applicable to 

this case. (IBID)   

The following day the Defendant filed a 35 page Motion for Reconsideration highlighting 

manifest evidence regarding as to how the Wife could not be found credible. (IBID)  The Wife 

also filed a Motion for Reconsideration on 20 Dec, 2018 requesting a contingency lien on 

Husband’s property.  Judge Pincus ruled on 8 January, 2018 approving the Wife’s Motion for 

Reconsideration in its entirety and rejecting the Husband’s Motion for Reconsideration in its 

entirety.  In light of these motions the Amended Final Order was revised, which included Judge 

Pincus’ own act of Reconsideration where she increasing the Plaintiff’s alimony allocation from 

$1,300 to $1,600. (IBID) 

On 20 February, 2018 the Husband gave notice of Appeal to the Supreme Court on 

account of the new “Faith Based Abuse” concept, but the matter was remanded to the Appellate 

Court.  Since this time the Appellate Court has granted limited remand to allow for the sale of 

the couples homes and this has been approved by the Family Court via a Consent Order. (IBID)  

The Appeal in South Carolina is fully briefed with a Record on Appeal that is over 1700 pages 

long.   The Matter has been pending scheduling for almost a year.   

                                                        
5 CP Sub Document 14 page 8 
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From the Case demonstrating the lack of credibility of the wife were given during 

testimony from the Court Resourcedd Psychologist who had evaluated both parties: 

Dr. Marc Harari was the psychologist resourced by Mr. Stoddard for the Court ordered 

Psychological evaluations.  During testimony of the final trial he contrasted our results saying: 

Dr. Harari Regarding the Wife: 

“Her presentation was fairly typical.  There was a tendency to externalize responsibility 
for – kind of blaming M. Crabtree for the demise of the marriage and the conflict that has 
gone on since.  There was some inconsistency between her reports to me, compared to 
some of the information, collateral information she provided.”6 
“And in the terms of a specific area that I found was there was inconsistency about 
fearing for her life and physical safety that was written in some of the complaints and the 
affidavits but was not relayed to me during the interview.” (IBID) 

Dr. Harari Regarding the Husband: 

“in my opinion, Mr. Crabtree was somewhat defensive and also a tendency to externalize 
responsibility and minimize his role in the conflict; however, he did produce collateral 
information that was supportive of his perspective.”7 

Dr. Harari Regarding the Wife: 

“Reviewing the validity data on the psychological inventory between Mr. Crabtree and 
Mrs. Crabtree the accumulation of findings suggest that he is generally responded in a 
more candid manner.” (IBID) 

Dr. Harari Regarding the Husband: 

“from the accumulation of data, I did not see overt personality dysfunction or 
psychological dysfunction.  One of the allegations was you’re highly aggressive, violent, 
narcissistic, and the test data that I acquired didn’t support those qualities that I saw.” 
(IBID) 

Dr. Harari making a contrast: 

“I measure faking good or defensiveness.  On two of them, she had elevations where – 
that were high on social desirability.  And on yours, your evaluation, your responses 
presented as candid and reasonable, meaning they weren’t elevated.  So it’s just one way 
of comparing one aspect of your presentation comparing one aspect of your presentation 
compared to hers was that I found your test data more, you know, reasonably 
interpretable, where I found that I needed some caution interpreting her test data due to 
possible symptom minimization.” (IBID) 

How Mrs. Crabtree presented to the MMPI 2 Evaluation: 

                                                        
6 CP Sub Document 14 Page 20 
7 CP Sub Document 14 Page 21 
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“Mrs. Crabtree presented as a woman that can be passive and submissive in her 
relationships, she tends to – or endorse where she doesn’t assert herself appropriately and 
maybe engage in withdrawal tendencies rather than face conflict.  That’s how she kind of 
views herself, according to the MMPI results.  There’s also a tendency to be overly 
dependent on others.” 8 

 

Based on her results and self presentation as a submissive woman, Dr. Harari recommended that 

Christy continue therapy because of the situational stressors, help improve her assertiveness and 

reduce passive behavior in terms of dealing with the conflict. (IBID) 

Final Trial 

It took two years to get to final trial where we had a three day trial where I had numerous 

witnesses, the Court selected Psychologist, and multiple audio recordings to show that I had been 

mischaracterized solely on account of her will not being done.   The Judge Monet Pincus’ order 

was very contradicting.   It based my use of Faith as the Cause of the Demise of the Marriage.   It 

found that I failed to lend credence to the complaints of my wife, but it directly also failed to 

lend credence to her and found I was a loving father.   So, it was humorous in a sick way and 

anti-constitutional (U.S. Const. amend I).    

“13.  The children’s cultural and spiritual backgrounds are not an issue in this case.  The 
parties profess a strong Christian faith, but the fathers use of his Christian faith toward 
Mother in this regard was the main cause of the demise of the marriage.” 9 
 
“Husband made it impossible for Wife to remain in the marriage and she needs alimony.” 10 

Relocation 

I motioned for reconsideration and Appealed the Final Ruling for which the Initial Brief 

is included.   During the Months from January of 2018 following the Final Trial and June of 

2018 Christy Crabtree took me to Court on Contempt for failure to pay the $3,004 dollars in 

                                                        
8 CP Sub Document 14 Page 22 
9 2020-04-20, Initial Brief Page 5 
10 2019-04-20, Initial Brief Page 6 
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alimony and child support.   I defended myself there where the Judge Thomas Bultman, took the 

matter under advisement but then ruled that I had 30 days to pay or 30 days in jail.   I needed to 

sell the House in Spokane WA in order to gain the funds and I put the home up for sale.   The 

Appellate Court allowed for that to transpire.   I also had Reserve Duty in Colorado to gain 

income but not in such short order and I could not pay in time, but Christy and the Kids and I 

both relocated to Whatcom County during that 30 day period which had been discussed in the 

contempt hearing and for which Court was aware and in-part facilitated with the 30 day period.   

Once I sold the House in October Christy received her funds.   But a month earlier, in September 

she motioned for a warrant for my arrest in South Carolina, and though she was paid shortly 

thereafter she continues to refuse to confirm with the S.C. Court that the monies were paid and 

thus the Warrant remains in effect which is problematic for traditional employment.   And 

though traditional employment is not my avenue, the refusal to alleviate the technically purged 

warrant is reflective of the woman’s disposition and lack of concern to increase financial 

opportunity. 

Contempt of Court 

 Once I had sold the House and paid the funds to Christy I had remaining funds that went 

to all my creditors.   Once I had paid all the Credit Cards and my parents back for carrying the 

mortgage payment on the Spokane House and for the preparations it needed for sale.   I had no 

further funds.   About 6 months after relocation to Washington State Christy had the foreign 

order from South Carolina registered in Whatcom County and Moved for the Contempt Hearing 

for the payment since the Sale of the Spokane Home.   It was her presumption per these 

Appellate Briefs that I should have plenty of money.   But all the debts I had incurred to survive 

during the divorce process also needed to be payed from the proceeds of the sale.   These 
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creditors on ethical grounds were also more deserving because they had not lied to create their 

debts.    

ARGUMENT 
Conflict 

 The primary issue of this case is contempt of a different sort.   And the reason for it is a 

division about what is reasonable.   For one person they simply want to survive, avoid pain and 

unnecessary trouble.   The idea of God, principles, and philosophy is approached with caution.  

This is because ideals are useful for manipulation of the masses.  Religion is commonly 

perverted to manipulate.   It is thus quite troublesome when the rationale born from pragmatism 

or self-interest attempts to compel the type of rationale born of Christ oriented servitude.   There 

is an inherent battle where arguments cannot land well on the opposing party due to their 

perception of their purpose in life. 

Contempt 

 In response to such conflict there is a predictable response from the party advocating self-

interest.   If there is no relational tie between two people, then the conflict of ideals may allow a 

dispassionate conversation.   But if there is significant consequence due to relational 

interdependencies such as a family, and consensus is required between the two people, and yet 

they are divided at heart over the purposes governing their lives.   It is impossible for the matter 

to remain dispassionate.    

First Blood 

 My religious expectation within the realm of mutual-faith was that I should be able to 

serve God with my vision to network volunteers.   I additionally felt that my wife who vowed to 

support and aid me would choose purpose over ease.   I also operate with a sense of God’s 

faithfulness that he is at work and has good purpose for me.   So, I perceive that my former wife 
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is in contempt of God, her vows, and me.   That I am not at fault for the use of my faith.   And 

the idea that faith is wielded against my wife is a reversal of it’s defensive role in that it served to 

buttress the pursuit of my purpose against her accusation and condemnation.  It was used against 

her accusations, but not against her.  My refusal to validate the person attacking my prerogative 

is basically a defense of my right to choose work.   Yet the Court found that I failed to validate 

anxieties or the worry forcing my wife to betray me emboldened by my faith.   The fabrications, 

this break in faith from the truth regarding my character, in her original pleadings was cruelty, 

abandonment, and with constructive effort to bring harm.   I have acted in good faith without 

contempt for her, for God, for Country, and nor contempt towards the Court.   The issue of 

contempt is directed in fact towards the US Constitution (U.S. Const. amend I). 

Projected Contempt 

 It appears to me that the person who is overcome with a spirit of contempt predictably 

accuses the other of it.   Once this battle shapes up it is not uncommon for the guilty party to 

escalate their efforts to provoke a reaction so as to gain evidence to validate their lie.   

Additionally, by creating trouble for the target, any trouble that does transpire is useful as 

reinforcing fodder.   Making an external enemy in order to fail to see the internal/eternal enemy 

in the fear at heart. 

Truth as Perception 

 It is said that the victor gets to write the history books.   That is no different in this case.   

Despite all my efforts to evince the merits of truth in my case, I was condemned for my 

faithfulness to my faith and it was found to be contemptable.  My faith appears intolerant of 

fabrications and inherently precludes validating such invalid perspectives.   Look at the case of 

Christian Cooper in New York Central Park who indicated that Amy Cooper was in the wrong 
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for her unleashed dog.   See how she accused him eagerly and put her trust in the ability to 

leverage stereotypes.   Without his video evidence her efforts would have jailed him.   His crime, 

attempting to enforce standards, and her reaction a willingness to project fault instead of accept 

fault.   And the fault she was willing to project had little restraint.    

Vindication 

 Vindication is like a perpetual black hole.  It sucks in all the light and bears no light.   It 

warps the light and it can only be seen by looking closely to see how the light has been 

manipulated around it.   So, the truth is bent to serve the purpose of vindication.   Thus, the most 

effective lies are the ones that cherry-pick facts to manipulate and fabricate a meaning.   The 

person who has compromised their integrity, because they don’t think their soul matters, do not 

emit light, they consume it and bend it.   And those who need love, instead of becoming love, 

they feed on others.   Therefore, love going into a man does little, but love coming out of man is 

life eternal.   Like a star emitting light.   And both these stars and black holes have something in 

common, they have influence of gravity, affecting those around them.  *(Man is both male and 

female mankind) 

Momentum 

So, the victor writes the history books.  But it does not mean the history written is true.   

Without the facts, and without the trial record, a spun story without the thrash or conflict leading 

up to it must be approached with a review.       

Appellate Court 

The Appellate Court acknowledged: 
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“In Short, and although the commissioner’s findings on this point should have 

been more thorough, there is substantial evidence in the record to support the trial 

court’s finding of contempt.” 11 

Appellate Court is in error regarding any evidence whatsoever because there is no record of the 

case in Washington, let alone the phrase “substantial evidence,” because the Divorce Order was 

transferred from South Carolina, without any evidence for Pamela Englett.   The only matter held 

by the Court was the Order to be enforced.  The `history written` = The Order, of this narrative 

accompanied with an Appeal by me citing manifest error she chose not to read.   The Finding of 

Contempt was entirely absent of all the evidence.   Which is why it is prudent for Pamela Englett 

to have had a “hearing” where she could “hear,” and “weigh” and “consider” and act judiciously.  

This was her primary failure to do her job.   Which then brings about either her contempt or her 

laziness or both.   Is Pamela Englett incompetent or is she hateful or both.   Hatefulness can lead 

to laziness, and perhaps vice versa.   Which raises another question, do the Courts police their 

own?  Or are they like a brood of vipers covering for one another?   What loyalty is there to the 

Constitution once a vain person takes offense and makes vindication their primary purpose? 

 The remaining arguments concocted by the Appellate Court are superfluous to this 

primary issue regarding lack of effort by the Commissioner, and only serve as general fodder of 

excuses mounded on a false foundation. 

The Odor 

 What I see is that the human condition is hard at work here.   The more shallow a person 

is, the more easily they are triggered / reviled.   The more that they have compromised 

themselves with respect to justice, that is to love, or to do unto others as they would want done 

                                                        
11 2020-04-20, Ruling Page 9  
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unto them.   They of course have well developed rationalizations for their `us v.. them` 

prejudices.   Add to this the case of attorneys, have they facilitated hate of self-interest, do they 

indulge vindictive hate as a guise of duty?   These compromised souls become quite self-

concerned and their reality informs their will / desires corrupts their rationalizations.   Their will 

becomes enslaved, dedicated to preserving a reality that makes excuse for self interest and self 

justification.   This leads to the spirit of contempt and vindication.  This gives birth to identity 

death as a primary substance to a person’s purpose in life where truth is threatening, and those 

who represent truth are threatening.   Thus the need for article 1 of the us Constitution (U.S. 

Const. amend I).   So that the personal enslavement of the human condition can be put in check. 

The War 

 It has become quite evident to me that there is a war playing out between good and evil.   

There are emotional tells in people on either side of this war.   The false person, regardless of 

political affiliation, invite an evil spirit into themselves when they use truth but do not produce

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