FILED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
7/22/2020 3:52 PM
BY SUSAN L. CARLSON
CLERK

Supreme Court No. 98576-6 Court of Appeals No. 80165-1-I

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

In re:

CHRISTINE CRABTREE, Respondent,

v.

DONALD CLINTON CRABTREE, Appellant.

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

Todd J. Allen, WSBA# 37839 Attorney for Respondent THE LAW OFFICE OF TODD J. ALLEN, PLLC 119 North Commercial Street, Suite 460 Bellingham, WA 98225 (360) 788-5288

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

V. ARGUMENT

A. CONSIDERATIONS GOVERNING ACCEPTANCE OF REVIEW

When a party seeks review of a Court of Appeals decision, the "petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

(1) If the decision is in conflict with a decision Supreme Court; or

⁶ RP 15:13 – 16:2.

⁷ CP 48 – 51.

⁸ CP 50, § 8.

⁹ CP 51, § 13.

- (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of Court of Appeals; or
- (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington State or of the United States is involved; or
- (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court."

WA RAP 13.4.(b)

In this case, Mr. Crabtree has not presented any allegation, argument, or authority that the Court of Appeals decision in this matter is in conflict with any prior Washington decisions.

Mr. Crabtree has also not identified how a significant question of law under either the Washington or United States Constitutions is involved. He does provide a series of conclusory allegations that his first amendment rights have been violated, but without any clear reasoning or explanation as to how. His conclusory statements do not demonstrate that a significant question of law under the Constitution is involved. He states that the Court of Appeals ignores the first amendment to the United States Constitution, but does not explain how. He further states that the superior court's contempt order displays contempt for the first amendment of the United States Constitution but similarly does not provide any authority or rational argument as to how. Simply

stating that his freedom of religion has been violated based on his own curious interpretation of the South Carolina order does not create a significant question of constitutional law.

As evidenced by the majority of Mr. Crabtree's Statement of the Case, his grievance primarily lies with the underlying South Carolina order. The entire record in this case demonstrates Mr. Crabtree's ongoing effort to relitigate that matter here in Washington. However, when the out-of-state order was registered in Washington, Mr. Crabtree never requested a hearing to contest the validity or enforceability of the order as required by RCW 26.21A.525. When a registered order is confirmed either by operation of law or after a hearing, then any further contest of the order with respect to any matter that could have been asserted at the time or registration is precluded. RCW 26.21A.535. Mr. Crabtree is clearly now attempting to contest the order when he previously had the opportunity to do so before the order was confirmed by operation of law. This is contrary to statue and Mr. Crabtree does not provide any argument or authority as to how those applicable statutes are unconstitutional.

Similarly, Mr. Crabtree has not otherwise presented any evidence, authority, or argument on how the underlying contempt statutes are unconstitutional, or how a finding of contempt for his failure to pay his support obligations otherwise raises a significant

question of law under the Washington or United States constitutions.

With respect to whether Mr. Crabtree's petition involves an issue of substantial public interest, his argument lacks on this point as well. His petition reads more like a manifesto about his dissatisfaction about having to follow court orders and his justification for his failure and refusal to follow those orders rather than a valid petition for the Supreme Court to review a legal decision.

The closest Mr. Crabtree comes to asserting a clearly identifiable allegation of error is on page 15 of his brief wherein he argues that the Court of Appeals' finding that there was substantial evidence was erroneous. He argues that the court commissioner did not adequately review the entirety of the South Carolina proceedings before making her ruling on contempt, and that the Court of Appeals erred in affirming that ruling. However, he conflates the evidence presented during the underlying South Carolina proceedings with the evidence necessary for a finding of contempt, which is whether he was in compliance with a valid court order on support obligations.

Despite Mr. Crabtree's efforts at obfuscation, this matter is relatively simple. He was ordered to pay a certain amount of support. He did not pay support as ordered. The order became enforceable in Washington. He did not contest the enforceability as

required by Washington law. Upon a properly brought motion for contempt, he did not adequately demonstrate that he lacked the means to pay as required by RCW 26.18.050(4). He was subsequently found in contempt for not paying the support he was ordered to pay.

The Court of Appeals finding that there was substantial evidence of the above does not create an issue of substantial public interest. And Mr. Crabtree's petition does not otherwise identify how any such issue needs to be addressed by the Supreme Court. In his conclusion, he invokes the Supreme Court's opportunity to "police its maverick judges," but does not adequately explain how the judges are "maverick." Simply being unhappy with a decision, ruling or order does not render the judicial officer(s) who rendered it "maverick." There is no issue of substantial public interest in this matter that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

B. ATTORNEY FEES

If the non-prevailing party in the Court of Appeals files a petition for review to the Supreme Court that is subsequently denied, then reasonable attorney fees may be awarded to the party who prevailed in the Court of Appeals and timely filed and answer to the petition for review. RAP 18.1(j). Ms. Crabtree was awarded attorney fees below, and respectfully requests that she be awarded her attorney fees for the preparation and filing of this answer to the petition for review.

VI. CONCLUSION

Mr. Crabtree has not provided any valid basis for the Supreme Court to review the Court of Appeals decision in this matter. He devotes the majority of briefing to airing his grievances with the South Carolina order and the Whatcom County Superior Court's enforcement of that order and attempts to justify his failure to abide by court ordered support obligations with his perceived moral authority. However, he otherwise provides no authority or argument on how any of the factors in RAP 13.4(b) have been satisfied. There are no prior decisions of the Supreme Court or Court of Appeals that have been identified to be in conflict with the Court of Appeals decision in this matter. There is also no identifiable significant question of law under the United States or Washington Constitutions. Finally, Mr. Crabtree's petition does not involve a substantial public interest that should be decided by the Supreme Court. Accordingly, Mr. Crabtree's petition for review should be denied.